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modity Futures Trading Commission v. Yu et al Doc

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES COMMODITY FUTURES Case No.: 12-CV-3921 YB

TRADING COMMISSION,
ORDER GRANTING MOTION FOR

L. PRELIMINARY |NJUNCTION
Plaintiff,

VS.
VICTORYU, D/B/A VISCOINTERNATIONAL,
LTD., CURRENCY TRADING CLUB AND

VICTORY FX CLuB, AND VFRS,LLC,

Defendants.

On July 26, 2012, Plaintiff Commodity fwes Trading Commission (“CFTC” or
“Commission”) filed a Complaint for Injunctive ar@ther Equitable Relief and Penalties Under {
Commodity Exchange Act (“Complaint”) agairidefendants Victor Y{{“Yu”), d/b/a Visco
International Ltd., Currency Trading Club avigttory FX Club, and VFRS, LLC (“VFRS”)
(collectively, “Defendants”) seeking injunctive and other equitable rgrefiolations of the
Commodity Exchange Act (the “Act”) as anded by the Food, Conservation and Energy Act of
2008, Pub. L. No. 110-246, Title Xl (the CFTReauthorization Act of 2008 (“CRA")),

88 13101-13204, 122 Stat. 1651 (enacted June 18, 204B)he Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform
and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (“Dodd+tk#ct”), Pub. L. No. 111-203, Title VII (the

Wall Street Transparency and Accountabifgt of 2010), 88701-774, 124 Stat. 1376 (enacted
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July 21, 2010), to be codified at 7 U.S.C. 88t 5eq, and the Commission Regulations
(“Regulations”) promulgated thereunder, 17 C.F.R. 8&1geq(2011).

Specifically, the CFTC’s Complaint allegdtat Defendants have violated, and are
continuing to violate, Section 4b(a)(2)(A) and @Yhe Act, as amended, 7 U.S.C. 88 6b(a)(2)(A
(C), and, in connection with conduct onadter October 18, 201@Gommission Regulation
(“Regulation”) 5.2(b)(1) and (3), 17 C.F.R. 8 5.2(h)(B) (2011). The Complaint also alleges th
Yu has violated Section 2(c)(2)(C)(iii)(1)(bb) tife Act, 7 U.S.C. 8§ 2(c)(2)(C)(ii))()(bb), and
Regulation 5.3(a)(3)(i), 17 €.R. 8 5.3(a)(3)(i) (2011).

On July 27, 2012, this Court enteredEanParteTemporary Restraining Order prohibiting
the withdrawal, transfer, removal, dissipation, concealment, or disposition of Defendants’ ass
prohibiting the destruction of or prevention of CFTC access to Defendants’ books and record
providing for other relief.

This matter now comes before the Court onrRRiffiis Motion for an Order of Preliminary
Injunction, filed July 26, 2012, and set for hearing on August 10, 2012, at 10:00 a.m. pursuar
the Court’s July 27 Order. The record beforeGoert indicates that Defielants have been served
with the summons and complaint, the July 27 @rded all papers in gport of the preliminary
injunction. Defendants did nappear at the hearing.

Having carefully considered the papers submiitted the pleadings in this action, and for

the reasons set forth below, the Court he®@hyNTs the Commission’s Motion for Preliminary

N—r

tto

Injunction. It appears tthe satisfaction of th€ourt that there is good cause to believe Defendants

have engaged in violations of the Act. Speailly, it appears that theis good cause to believe
that Defendants have violat&ection 4b(a)(2)(A) and (C) t¢iie Act, as amended, 7 U.S.C.

88 6b(a)(2)(A), (C), and, inamnection with conduct on or after October 18, 2010, that Defendg
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have violated Regulation 5.2(b)(1) and (3), 1F¥.B. 8 5.2(b)(1), (3) (2012), and that Yu has
violated Section 2(c)(2)(C)(ii))((pb) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 2)(2)(C)(iii)(1)(bb), and Regulation
5.3(a)(3)(i), 17 C.F.R. 8 5.8)(3)(i) (2012). Consequdy, the Court is satied that this is a
proper case for granting a preliraiy injunction to preserve tteatus quoprotect Defendants’
clients, as well as the trading public at larfgem further loss and damage, remove the danger o
further violations of the Act and the Regulatioasgd enable the Commission to fulfill its statutory
duties:
SUMMARY OF EVIDENCE PRESENTED BY THE COMMISSION

A. Solicitation Fraud

On or before August 2009, Yu and VFRS, by and through Yu, began soliciting prospe
clients for the purpose of trading forfx the clients’ imlividual accounts SeeAppendix of
Declarations and Exhibits (Dkt. No. 17): Daeltion of Martin Benik [“Benik Dec.”] 1 4;
Declaration of Raymond Dryer [“er Dec.”] § 3-4; Dedration of Darren Has [‘Haas Dec.”]
4-5; Declaration of Joseph J. Patrick [‘Patrick Dief.9. Yu claims to use an “algorithm softwarg
program” he developed that determines favoraialdes and places those trades in clients’

accounts.ld.: Benik Dec. 1 4; Dryer Dec. | 3; Haas® { 4-5; Patrick Dec. 1 9, 27. Yutells

! For purposes of this Order gtffiollowing definitions apply:
a. “Assets” means any legal or equitable interest in, right to, or claim to any real or persog
property, including but not limited to chattels, goodstrumments, equipment, fixtures, general intangibles

f

ctive

nal

effects, leaseholds, mail or other deliveries, inventory, checks, notes, accounts including bank accounts ar

accounts at financial institutions, credits, receivablessluof credit, securities, contracts including spot ar
futures contracts, insurance padisj and all cash, wherever located.

b. “Document” is synonymous in meaning autial in scope to the usage of the termdn.F
R.Civ. P. 34(a) and includes writings, drawings, graghs/sts, photographs, audio and video recordings,
computer records, and other data compilations fdmeh information can be obtained and translated
through detection devices into reasoyaidable form. A draft or non-identical copy is a separate docun
within the meaning of the term.

C. “Defendants” refers to Victor Yu, VFRBL.C, and any person insofar as he or she is acti
in the capacity of an officer, agent, servant, emplpgeattorney of Defendants, and any person acting ir
concert or participation with Defendants who receives actual notice of this Order by personal service
otherwise, including electronic mail, facsimile, United Parcel Service, or Federal Express.

d
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clients that he has worked for Charles Schwaliefo years and spent several years developing his
software trading programd.:Dryer Dec. | 3; Patrick Dec.198, 27. Yu has told at least some
prospective clients that his bness name was CTC or VF[@.: Declaration Tobe Beth Bassior
[“Bassior Dec.”] 1 3; Dryer Dec. 1 4.

To solicit new clients, Yu and VFRS, by atidough Yu, hold face-to-face meetings with
prospective clients in various clients’ homéd.: Bassior Dec. § 3; BeniRec. | 4, 6; Dryer Dec. |
3; Haas Dec. 1 4-5; Patrick Dec. 1 9, 27 febdants obtain leads primarily through word-of-
mouth. Seeid.: Bassior Dec. { 3; Benik Dec. § 3; Dryeed® { 3, 7; Haas Dec. | 3; Patrick Dec. §
9. Yu asks for referrals from existing clients arehfrently asks clients tovite their friends and
acquaintances to meegis at their homesld.: Dryer Dec. | 3; Patrick Dec. { 18, 24, 34. In
exchange for referring new clients, Yu promisgssting clients a referréée or a percentage of
any profits earned in éhnew clients’ accountdd.: Benik Dec. § 14; Dryer Dec. { 7; Patrick Dec
24, 34. At these meetings, Yu explains how thensoft allegedly places trades automatically in
forex accountsld.: Benik Dec. 1 4; Dryer Dec. | 4; Haasc. § 4-5. Yu also shows prospective
clients account statements withrydigh returns that they clainesulted from trading pursuant to
the softwareld.: Patrick Dec. § 19, 27.

Additionally, Yu has made the [fowing misrepresentations s solicitations of clients
and prospective clients:

e Yu's software makes forex trading “extreljmeafe” and prevents clients from ever

losing their principalld.: Dryer Dec. | 4; Bassior Dec. | 4; Patrick Dec. | 27.
e Yu’s software has successfully predictethaty in the currency markets back to the

1920s.ld.: Patrick Dec. 9.
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e Defendants have earned a positive returnliamaales made pursuant to Yu'’s software
and clients are guaranteed that they will not have a losing tlddBenik Dec. | 4.

e Clients may expect to earn annual returmgiag from 20-100% if they allow Yu to

trade their accountdd.: Benik Dec.  4; Patrick Dec.  18.

e Yu's software is so effective that Warrenfi has expressed arténest in purchasing

it. Id.: Haas Dec. 4.

In reality, Yu knew or acted ireckless disregard of the facts that all forex trading is risky
and that it is impossible to guntee trading profits or annuaiturns for a forex accountd.:
Patrick Dec. 1 50. Additionally, Yu knew tHaefendants executed numerous losing trades in
clients’ accounts and that mostéfendants’ clients lost funds tHaefendants traded for them.
Id.: Patrick Dec. 1 44. Defendants also never discltséukir clients that #y were required to be
registered with the Commission to trade client accounts Dryer Dec.  4; Patrick Dec.  28.

Once prospective clients expressed an inténgsiving Defendantsade forex for them,
the clients signed a “Customer Agreemend’”: Bassior Dec. { 4; Dryer Dec. { 5. The agreement
was written on VIL letterhead and specified that ¢thients would pay Defendants a “service fee”
of 30% of any net profits earned from Defendaraditrg their account duedHirst and fifteenth of
every month.ld.: Bassior Ex. A; Patrick Ex. C. Albugh the client agreement listed a minimum
investment of $100,000, maodtents invested $30,000-50,00@.: Bassior Dec. 1 5; Dryer Dec.
5, 7, 11; Haas Dec. { 6; Patrick Dec. I 10teAtlients signed the Customer Agreement, Yu
directed them to open and fund an account wipharticular retail foreign exchange dealer
(“RFED”) and then provide Yu with their persadiog-in and password information so that Yu
could “hook up” the trading software to the accoddt: Bassior Dec.  5; Benik Dec. { 7; Dryer

Dec. 1 4; Haas Dec. | 6; Patridkc. 1 10, 29. Yu told clients hed negotiated a special deal with
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the RFED whereby Yu's clients would not be g@et commissions on the trades placed in their
accounts by his forex trading softwaite.: Dryer Dec. { 4. Yu charged some clients an
installation fee to connect his sofire to their home computerkl.: Benik Dec. § 5, 8-9; Haas 7
Patrick Dec. § 11. Defendants’ clients did nghgpowers of attorney atherwise provide the
RFED with documentation authorizing aDgfendant to access their accourts: Patrick Dec. |
43.

Defendants frequently communicated witkitltlients by telephone, Skype, and eméil:
Bassior Dec.  6; Dryer Dec. {/Batrick Dec. 1 23. In all, &ast 100 clients have set up forex
trading accounts through the RFED specified by Yu and allowed Defendants to place trades
those accountsld.: Patrick Dec. 1 42. Each of thosénts had an individual net worth of $5
million or less. See id. Bassior Dec.  2; Benik Dec. {2ryer Dec. | 2; Haas Dec. { 2.

B. Defendants’ Trading

After their accounts were opened, many @f thents initiallyreceived profits.Id.: Bassior
Dec. 1 6; Dryer Dec. | 6; Patrick Dec. { 15, 23. n#tified clients of their account status via ema
or over the telephone on a regular basis and regufsteclients remit cheskor the service fees
due under the Customer Agreemelat.. Dryer Dec. { 10; Patrick Dec. { 15, 30. Yu instructed
clients to make these checks palgeeither to Yu or to VFRSId.: Dryer Dec. | 6; Patrick Dec. |
15, 32. After several months of trading, lemer, most clients experienced losskb: Bassior
Dec. 1 6; Patrick Dec. | 15, 25. Whthe clients expressed conceim¥ u about these losses, Yu
attempted to reassure them by telling them tiatsoftware would automatically place hedge
trades that would protect theiccounts from additional lossasd that their accounts would
recover from any lossedd.: Bassior Dec. § 6. Yu also taddme concerned clients in March 201

that international events including the Europedst deisis and the major earthquake in Japan we

n

il




United States District Court
Northern District of California

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

causing the currency markets to become unstablaféecting the success tife software program,
Id.:Dryer Dec.  10; Patrick Dec. { 25. He totter clients at around that time that the software
had placed trades involving the Chinese Yuanwmatld soon begin to show significant returns.
Wade Dec.  11. Yu assured clients thatoas @s the currency markettabilized, he would
personally day trade their accounts, which wiallow them to recover their lossdsl.. Patrick
Dec. § 17, 25.

However, despite Yu's assurances, clieatstounts continued to suffer losses until the
clients either closed out theiccounts or their accoubalances reached zero and any remaining
positions were closed out by the RFEI.:Bassior Dec. | 10; Benik Dec. § 13; Patrick Dec. T 1
25. Overall, clientfost a total of $2,148,328.717d.: Patrick Dec. { 44.

On or about July 2011 when one client questd Yu regarding the losses in her account
Yu blamed the losses on actions by the RFED. Bassior Dec. § 8. He told the client not to log
into her account for several days because he wamtgather evidence farove that the RFED was
logging into and manipulating the accoutd.:Bassior Dec. | 8. Ifact, the RFED was not
logging into or manipulating thaccount in any manneld.: Patrick Dec. § 45. Two days later, Y
told the same client that alkfles in the account had been cloggdhe RFED and that the accoun
had a zero balanced.: Bassior Dec. § 10. Yu blamedetie losses on a system outage at the
RFED, but no system outage at the RFED had occutded®assior Dec. | 10.

STANDARDS APPLICABLE TO THE MOTION

Section 6¢(b) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. 8§ 13a-1(@0)06), provides in p&nent part that “[u]pon

a proper showing, a . . . temporary injunction shall be granted wibut bond.” Pursuant to

Section 6c of the Act, 7 U.S.C. 8§ 13a-1 (2006), Plaintiff seeks a preliminary injunction agains

o

—
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Defendant prohibiting, among other things, any futuoéations of the sections of the Act and the
Regulations under which they have been charged.

The injunctive relief contemplated in this pon of the Act is remedial in nature, and is
designed to prevent injury to tipeiblic and to deter future illegeonduct. Unlike private actions,
which are rooted in the equity jurisdiction of theldeal court, an agency’s suit for injunctive relie
is a creature of statute. The Commission’s “jajdd for statutory injunctions need not meet the
requirements for an injunction imposedtbgditional equity jurisprudence.CFTC v. Hunt591
F.2d 1211, 1220 (7th Cir. 1979)railer Train Co. v. State Bd. of Equalizatid@®7 F.2d 860, 869
(9th Cir. 1983). Instead, the CFT€entitled to ifunctive relief upon @rima facieshowing that a
violation of the law has occurreddhthat “there is some reasonaldkelihood of future violations.”
Hunt, 591 F.2d at 1220.gg alsdred. Election Comm'n v. FurgatcB69 F.2d 1256, 1261 (9th Cir
1989) (in cases involving statutanjunctions on the basis of pasblations, party moving for the
injunction must show only that thereaslikelihood” of future violations).CFTC v. British Am.
Commodity Options Corp560 F.2d 135, 141 (2nd Cir. 1977) (“wetitablished” that agency neeq
only show reasonable likelihood wrong will lepeated for injunctive relief).

“While past misconduct does not lead necess#ilyre conclusion that there is a likelihoo
of future misconduct, it is highly suggestiokthe likelihood of future violations.’Hunt, 591 F.2d
at 1220 (internal citation omitted). In determining tikelihood of future violations, a court must
look to the totality of the circumstances, inchugliwhether the violationgquire a showing of
knowledge of wrongdoing, were persigter recurrent, or occurred @va long span of time, and
whether the circumstances indicate that the defenslamt position that nk&s future violations
likely to occur. See Hunt, 591 F.2d at 1220; British Am. Commaodity Options Ca8p.F.2d at

142;S.E.C. v. Murphy626 F.2d 633, 655 (9th Cir. 1980). “Wfinthe violation has been founded

[oX
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on systematic wrongdoing, rather than an isolatalirrence, a court should be more willing to
enjoin future misconductHunt, 591 F.2d at 1220. Moreover, because the commodities tradin
area is a highly regulated, “highly sensitive arepuddlic trust,” enjoining activity by unregistered
advisors, any circumstances that indicate thenadisfiet might repeat or continue his activity in
violation of the registration requiremerstsongly favor entry of an injunctiorBritish Am.

Commodity Options560 F.2d 135, 142 (2d Cir. 1977)

DISCUSSION

A. Jurisdiction and Venue

The evidence and pleadings indicate that@ourt has jurisdiction over the parties and
subject matter of this case. Section 6c of theaAitihorizes the CFTC to seek injunctive relief in
district court whenever it appears to the CFT&at thperson or entity ka@ngaged, is engaging, or
is about to engage in any act or practice tbastitutes a violation of any provision of the Act or
any rule, regulation, or order proigated thereunder. Venue progdrés with this Court pursuant
to Section 6¢(e) of the Act, 7 U.S.C. § 13a-1keause Defendants transacted business in this
District, and the acts and practidgassiolation of the Act haveazurred, are occurring, or are abot
to occur within this District.
B. Prima Facie Violations of The Act

The record filed in support of the Commission’s Motion constitufgiaa facieshowing
that Defendants violated certginovisions of the Act and tHRegulations and that a reasonable
likelihood of a future violation exists. Therefotlke issuance of the preliminary relief requested
the Commission is justified.

Section 4b(a)(2)(A) and (C) dihe Act prohibits cheatinglefrauding, and deception in

connection with off-exchange foreign currency (“fdietransactions thatazurred on or after June|

—+

by
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18, 2008. The Commission has presentedeswd that Defendants made material
misrepresentations and omissiaignaterial facts to the prospterze and actual clients with the
requisite scienter. Such conducaisiolation of Sectin 4b(a)(2)(A) and (C) of the Act, 7 U.S.C.
6b(a)(2)(A) and (C).

Similarly, Regulation 5.2(b)(1) and (3), whichpdypto forex transaabns occurring on or
after October 18, 2012, prohibits theeuf the mails or any instrumentality of interstate commer
in connection with fraudulent conduct. Then@uission has presentedigence that Defendants
used instrumentalities of interstate commenctuding the telephone and email connection with
their fraudulent conduct. Sudonduct is a violation dRegulation 5.2(b)(1) and (3).

Section 2(c)(2)(C)(iii)(1)(bb) prohibits any pon from exercisingiscretionary trading
authority or obtaining written authization to exercise writtenading authority ogr any account
for or on behalf of a non-eligible contractepant (“ECP”), unless registered with the
Commission, with certain exceptions not apgile here. Regulation 5.1(e)(1) defines a
commodity trading advisor (“CTA”) as any perseho exercises discretiary trading authority
over any account or on behalf of any person that ismmatigible contract pticipant as defined in
section 1la(12) of the Act, in connection with retail forex transactions. Regulation 5.3(a)(3)(i)
requires any CTA, as defined in Regulattoh(e)(1), to registawith the Commission.

The Commission has presented evidence thaaxéucised discretionary trading authority
over forex trading accounts opened by non-EC#sowt being registered with the Commission &
a CTA. This conduct violates Section 2(c)(2)(C)(iii)(1)(bb) &ehulation 5.3(a)(3)(i).

Because the Commission has magima facieshowing that Defendants have violated

Section 4b(a)(2)(A) and (®f the Act and Regulation 5.2(b)(@hd (3), and that Yu has violated

10
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Section 2(c)(2)(C)(iii)(1)(bb) othe Act and Regulation 5.3(a)(3)(@reliminary injunctive relief is

proper, warranted and apriate in this case.

ORDER OF PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION AND INTERIM EQUITABLE RELIEF

Based upon the foregoinky;, | SHEREBY ORDERED that:

1. Defendants and all persons insofar ay @ire acting in the capacity of agents,
servants, employees, successors, assigns, or akahBPgfendants, and all persons insofar as th
are acting in concert or participation with Dadfiants who receive actuabtice of this order by
personal service or otherwise, shall be prohibited and restrained from, until further order of th
Court, directly or indirectly:

a. Engaging in any conduct in vibéa of Section 4b(a)(2A) and (C) of the
Act and Regulation 5.2(b)(1) and (3), indlugl, but not limited to, making material
misrepresentations and omissiorconnection with forex trading; and

b. Engaging in conduct in violation $ection 2(c)(2)(C)(iii)(1)(bb) of the Act
and Regulation 5.3(a)(3)(i), includi, but not limited to, plang forex trades for none-ECPs.

2. Defendants are further restrained, enjoined, and prohibited, until further order
Court, from diretly or indirectly:

a. trading on or subject to the rulesaal registered entity (as that term is
defined in Section la of the Act as amended, todolified at 7 U.S.C§ 1a), including, but not
limited to, trading for themselves or their clients;

b. Entering into any transactioimyolving commaodity futures, options on
commodity futures, commodity options (as thattés defined in Regulation 1.3 (hh), 17 C.F.R.

§ 1.3(hh) (2011)) (“commodity options”), securitiures products, and/or foreign currency (as

11
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described in Sections 2(c)(2)(Bhd 2(c)(2)(C)(i) of the Act as anded by the Dodd-Frank Act, tq
be codified at 7 U.S.C. 88 2(c)(2)(B) and 2(c)@J() (“forex contracts”), for their own personal

accounts or for any account in which thieyve a direct or indirect interest;

C. Having any commodity futures, options on commodity futures, commodity

options, security futures products, andfmex contracts traded on their behalf;

d. Controlling or direting the trading for or on behalf of any other person or
entity, whether by power of att@m or otherwise, in any agant involving commodity futures,
options on commodity futures, commodity optipsscurity futures products, and/or forex
contracts;

e. Soliciting, receiving, or acceptiagy funds from any person for the purpos
of purchasing or selling any commodity futsiyreptions on commodity futures, commodity
options, security futures prods¢and/or forex contracts;

f. Applying for registration or aiming exemption from registration with the
Commission in any capacity, and engaging in any activity requiricly Igistration or exemption
from registration with the Commission, exceppasvided for in Regulation 4.14(a)(9), 17 C.F.R.
§ 4.14(a)(9) (2011); and

g. Acting as a principal (as that teisrdefined in Regulation 3.1(a), 17 C.F.R.

§ 3.1(a) (2011)), agent, or any other officer or employee opargon registered, exempted from
registration or required to begistered with the CFTC exceas provided for in Regulation
4.14(a)(9), 17 C.F.R. § 4.14(a)(9) (2011).

3. Defendants are restrained and enjoifnaih, directly or indirectly, withdrawing,
transferring, removing, dissipatj, concealing, assigning, pledgitgegsing, loaning, encumbering

disbursing, converting, selling, liquating, alienating, or otherwisesgiosing of any funds, assets,

12
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or other property, wherever Idea, including funds, assets, ohet property held outside the

United States, except as orderedhy Court. The assets affectegthis Paragraph shall include
both existing assets and assets aeguafter the effective date ofistOrder, as well as accounts npt
specifically identified below.

4. Pending further order of this Coumyabank, financial or brokerage institution,

—

entity, or person that holds, corlgpor maintains custody of anyrfds, assets, or other property g
Defendants, or has held, contrdll@r maintained custody of anyrfds, assets, or other property of
Defendants, and who receives notice of thidgDby any means, includy facsimile, electronic
mail, United Parcel Servicer Federal Express, shall:

a. prohibit Defendants and aother person from withdrawing, removing,
assigning, transferring, pledgingncumbering, disbursing, disaijing, converting, selling, or
otherwise disposing of any such assets, exagplirected by furtherder of the Court;

b. deny Defendants and all other pessaccess to any safe deposit box that i

|92}

1. titled in the name of or ma#ined by Defendants, either individually

jointly, or in any other capacityncluding safe deposit boxes titledtire name of or maintained by
nominees of Defendants; or
2. otherwise subject to thentrol of or access by Defendants; and
C. cooperate with all reasaie requests of the CFTC relating to

implementation of this Order, including produgirecords related to Bendants’ accounts and
Defendants’ businesses.

The Court furthe©RDERS:

1. Service of this Order upon Defendantalisbe in any manner approved for service)

of a summons and complaint pursuant to Rubé¢ #he Federal Rules @ivil Procedure.

13
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2. Defendants and all persons or entities who receive notice of this Order by pers
service or otherwise, includirglectronic mail, facsimile, United Parcel Service, or Federal
Express, are restrained and enjoined from dy@ctindirectly destroying, mutilating, erasing,
altering, concealing, or disposing of, in any mandeectly or indirectly, any documents that
relate to the business operatiamgractices, or the businessparsonal finances, of Defendants.

3. Representatives of the CFTC be allowethediately to inspedhe books, records,
and other documents of Defendaand their agents including, but not limited to, electronically
stored data, tape recordings, aodnputer discs, wherever they yriae situated and whether they
are in the possession of Defentaor others, and to copy said books, records, and other
documents, either on or off the prises where they may be situated.

4. Service of this Order upon any financial institution or other entity or person that
have possession, custody, or control of any doctsr@rassets of Defendants, or that may be
subject to any provision of this Order mayrbade by any means, including personal service,
United Parcel Service, FederatfiEess, or other commercial ongght service, email, facsimile,
Rule 5 of the Federal Rules of Civil ProcedureArticles 2 through 10 of the Hague Convention
Service Abroad of Judicial ariektrajudicial Documents. Robdrowell, Jennifer E. Smiley, and
Joseph Patrick, all employees of the CFTC hameby specially appointed to serve process,
including of this Order andlaother papers in this case.

5. Pursuant to Section 6c(b) of the Att).S.C. § 13a-1(b), no bond need be posted

the Commission, which is an agerafythe United States of America.

6. Defendants shall serve all pleadings, ggoadence, notices required by this Orde

and other materials on the CFTC by deliveringpycto Robert Howell, Tal Attorney, Division
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of Enforcement, U.S. Commodity Futuresading Commission, 525 VWionroe St., Suite 1100,

Chicago, lllinois, 60661 or by filing such pleadingsotiner materials electronically with the Court.

This Order shall remain in full force ardfect until further order of this Court upon
application, notice, and an opportunitybe heard, and that thi®@t retains jurisdiction of this
matter for all purposes.

This case is currently setrfan initial case management conference on November 2, 20
at 2:00 p.m. The Court will address the statuhefpreliminary injunction at that time. The
parties should submit a status report regarthiegoreliminary injunction along with their Joint
Case Management Statement 14 days in advartbe cbnference, consistent with this Court’s

Standing Order in Civil CaseseeScheduling Order issuedly26, 2012 (Dkt No. 14.)

Ly g ey

TSSO ORDERED.

Date:August 10, 2012

12,

YVONNE GONZALEZ ROGERS
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
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